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Carpentry Shop / H.J. Sheffield & Sons General Mercantile Co. / Library / Post Office/ Telephone Office ɀ 59 North Main Street  

A grocery store was started 

here by Heber John 

Sheffield with his wife 

*Sarah Blamires Sheffield. 

A carpentry shop operated 

by Charlie Bennett and 

Tom Lewis was partitioned 

to create sufficient space 

for small grocery business 

ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿŀǎƴΩǘ ƻǾŜǊ ŜƛƎƘǘ 

feet wide, but quite long.  

(General) 

The business did so well 

that in the early years of 

the 1890s they built a large, rather imposing, two-story building in the middle of the Main 

Street block, adding mercantile and hardware items.                                                                                                                                                        

   The U. S. Post Office occupied rooms on the street level of 

the Sheffield building from 1915 through 1960. In 1950 the 

second floor was removed and the space for the post office 

remodeled for the post office; Mrs. R. O. Layton was owner. 

February of 1900 it was suggested that Kaysville should 

have a free library and reading room. The Kaysville Library 

and Literary Society was organized with Albert Beazer 

President; Miss Leah Allen 1st VP; W. L. Galbraith 2nd VP; F. 

I. Mortenson Sec; and C. Burton Jr. Treas. Maud Barnes, 

Henry H. Blood were also appointed to the society. A room 

on the 2nd floor of this mercantile store was rented. Local 

citizens donated furniture, lamps, maps, newspapers, and 

books.  

Above Left: Sheffield Store 1892. (Heritage Museum)          

Above Right: Left to Right: Geo F Bishop carrying a can, 

clerks Zilla Smith & Hazel Bishop 

 

Above Right: Heber J. Sheffield was postmaster from 1915-1936.  (*Read more about suffragist Sarah B. Sheffield on page 52.) 
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Holsom Food Store / Green Hardware / Shoe Repair /  Kaysville Flower & Gift ɀ 59 North Main Street  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Holsom Food Store. ca. 1940.  

 

Green Hardware and Kaysville Flower were two of the companies that used the                                                                                                                                                              

old Sheffield building in the middle of the previous century.  Paul Flint was the owner of the flower shop first named Flint Floral on 3rd East where their 

greenhouses were also located. It was later sold a number of times but functioned as a floral shop during the 1970s. Holsom Food Stores was open 1939 to 1945; 

the address was probably closer to 41 North Main, but was in one of the buildings which an expanded Sheffield  

Store had used at one point.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
Lower right: Telephone Office, L to R: 

Francis Barnes Brown, Ida Smith White, 

Mrs. James Gardiner ς wife of manager 

Photo upper right L to R: William Layton, H.J. Sheffield, Kenneth Sheffield.  

 

 

The Bell Telephone Office occupied the 

front rooms of the Sheffield building 

second story from 1903-1925; Part of the 

first story was remodeled and the upper 

story removed in the early 1940s (to 

modernize). 1905 telephone exchange 

ǿŀǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŦǊƻƴǘ ǊƻƻƳ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǎǘƻǊŜΩǎ 

second story. 
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+Ï×ÌÅÙ $ÒÕÇ Ⱦ $ÁÖÉÓ #ÏÕÎÔÙ $ÒÕÇ  Ǫ ,ÉÑÕÏÒ 3ÔÏÒÅ Ⱦ $Å-ÏÎÔÅȭÓ $ÅÐÁÒÔÍÅÎÔ 3ÔÏÒÅ Ⱦ 6ÁÌÌÅÙ )ÎÓÕÒÁÎÃÅ Ⱦ 'ÕÉÔÁÒ #ÉÔÙ ɀ 63-67 North Main Street  

The Davis County Drug store operated from 1915 to 1925 at this location for. A 1922 newspaper 

ŀǊǘƛŎƭŜ ǎǘŀǘŜŘΣ ά5ŀǾƛǎ /ƻǳƴǘȅ 5ǊǳƎ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ Ƙŀǎ ƴƻǿ ōŜŎƻƳŜ ŀ ŦƛȄŜŘ ƛƴǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ 

management of Dorr Marsh. [It was the first drug store to become] firmly established. It is now an 

indispensaōƭŜ ŦƛȄǘǳǊŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƛǘȅΦέ όtǊƻǎǇŜǊƻǳǎύ  

Although the first successful one, Davis County Drug was not the last.  For at least twenty years 

under different names and ownerships a drug store was at this location. Succeeding was Kowley 

Drug No. 2. Layton druggist, Wallace Cowley opened a Kaysville branch in 1925 and stayed until 

1932.    

Jonetta Birkin became store manager of a business that existed under three different names. Mrs. 

Birkin was first to get a license to sell liquor in Kaysville, a liquor store being part of the drug store 

known variously as Birkin Pharmacy, Kaysville Drug Company, or Kaysville Pharmacy. It housed the 

Davis County Liquor StoreΦ  ! мфнр ŀǊǘƛŎƭŜ ŘŜǘŀƛƭŜŘΣ ά¢ƘŜ .ƛǊƪƛƴ ǇƘŀǊƳŀŎȅ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ŀ ǇŀŎƪŀƎŜŘ 

agency for the liquor control commission was burglarized. About half a dozen pints of whiskey and 

ǎŜǾŜǊŀƭ ŎŀƴŘȅ ōŀǊǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǘŀƪŜƴΦέ bƻǘŜ ǘƘŀǘΣ ŎǳǊƛƻǳǎƭȅ Ŝnough, prohibition was the law    

        from 1920 to 1933. Perhaps the liquor was medicinal.  

             In 1953, DeMonte Department Store were occupants of 63 North Main Street, the first 

store being in Bountiful. The first L & L Floor Covering, The Pendulum, and Kaysville TV & 

Video followed.               

In 1960, Valley Insurance Agency 

was located at 67 North Main. 

Starlight Jewelers, Guitar City 

followed up. Numerous occupants 

have served the community over 

the years. 

  Milton Burton at soda counter of Davis 

County Drug Store. 1915. (Heritage 

Museum) 



22 
 

,ÁÄÉÅÓ !ÉÄȟ 2ÅÌÉÅÆ 3ÏÃÉÅÔÙ (ÁÌÌȾ 'ÁÉÌÅÙ "ÕÉÌÄÉÎÇȡ "Ï×ÍÁÎȭÓ 2nd Golden Rule Store / Telephone Office / Kaysville Glass / Western Auto and 

Hardware ɀ 73-77 North Main Street  

An adobe brick building was erected in 1870 by the Kaysville 

Ward Relief Society. It had a food and grain storage area in 

the basement and served as a humanitarian center. A 

meeting place, it functioned as such between 1870-1914 

until the tabernacle was built. An east wind blew the 

building down between 1873-1875, but it was rebuilt and 

used for a longer time.  

Mr. Gailey became the new proprietor of the building in 

1914 and extensively remodeled the structure. The 2nd 

Golden Rule  was housed here 1914-1927 J.J. Bowman had 

moved his Golden Rule store from across the street east at 

128 North Main to this location. The telephone Co. moved 

from the top floor of the Sheffield store in 1925 to this 

location and served the people until their new building in 

Layton was built in 1960.  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

A small frame building, which was once the post office,                                                                                                                                             

                                                                    stood just before the red brick Relief Society Hall. The                                                                     

1953 Mountain States T & T phone book placed the 

post office at 73 North Main Street. It became the first 

central office for the Rocky Mountain Bell Telephone 

Company.  

 

LaMar Green, then later Carl Racker, had a Western 

Auto and Hardware store here for many years. The 

building was later purchased by Dean Sanders and 

became Kaysville Glass.  Kaysville Glass did business in 

the location beginning in 1959. (Ross)  

 

 

Above: The right side of photograph shows old Relief Society Hall.  

wƛƎƘǘΥ tƻǊǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀǊǘƛŎƭŜ ƛƴ ²ƻƳŀƴΩǎ 9ȄǇƻƴŜƴǘ ŘŀǘŜŘ CŜōǊǳŀǊȅ ммΣ 

1878 and published March 15th.  
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Hop 'ÅÅ #ÈÉÎÅÓÅ ,ÁÕÎÄÒÙȟ "ÅÁÚÅÒ "ÕÉÌÄÉÎÇ Ⱦ #ÏÎÆÅÃÔÉÏÎÅÒÙ Ⱦ #ÈÉÃËȭÓ "ÁÒÂÅÒ 3ÈÏÐ Ⱦ 3ËÙÌÉÎÅ "ÕÉÌÄÉÎÇ ÁÎÄ )ÎÖÅÓÔÍÅÎÔ ɀ 77-81 No. Main  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

In 1897, a little more than ten years after Chinese workers helped build the railroad that met in Promontory, three men of Chinese descent move to Kaysville.  

They were Yee Kee, his son, and Hop Gee.  They lived in Ogden, moved to Kaysville, later to Layton and back to Ogden. Hop Gee was a farmer who grew 

vegetables and herbs on a small space of land in what is now Layton.  In the summer, they sold these items door to door. During the winter months the pair sold 

rice, dried vegetables and spices.  In their thirties, they and had lived in the U.S. for several years prior.  The men founded a laundry on property north of the 

Ladies Aid building. Hop Gee Laundry ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǎƛƎƴ ƳƻǳƴǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǎǘƻǊŜ ŦǊƻƴǘΦ ¢ƘŜ ƴŜǿǎ ǎǘŀǘŜŘΣ άIƻǇ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ /ŜƭŜǎǘƛŀƭ ώ/ƘƛƴŜǎŜ ƛƳƳƛƎǊŀƴǘϐ ǘƻ ǘŀƪŜ ŀƴ ŀōƻŘŜ 

in Beazer BuildingΣέ the first to move to Kaysville. (Clipper) It was believed the men lived in the rear section of the building. άYee Kee, Chinese peddler and 

laundryman gladly contributes money to the fund for the families affected by the miners who lost their lives in the Schofield [Utah] mine disaster. (Salt Lake 

Herald) They also celebratŜ /ƘƛƴŜǎŜ bŜǿ ¸ŜŀǊΩǎ ōȅ ƎƛǾƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǎǘƻƳŜǊǎ ƻŦ YŀȅǎǾƛƭƭŜ ŎŀƴŘȅ ŀƴŘ ƴǳǘǎΦέ Lƴ мфмлΣ ǎeveral Kaysville teenagers harassed and played 

numerous practical jokes on them.  As a result of the harassment, they moved to Layton and a 

couple of years later back to Ogden.  No trace of them after thatΦέ όSanders)  

A number of sweet shops followed one upon the other including W.S. Stove Confectionery, 

Jamison Confectionery and Ice Cream Parlor, Kaysville Confectionery, M. W. Phillips Bakery and 

Confectionery, Tom Tucker Dairy and Confectionery.                                                                                                                                                                             

From the 1920s to 60s, /ƘƛŎƪ {ŎƻŦƛŜƭŘΩǎ Barber Shop held occupancy of 77-79 North Main with 

Skyline Building and Investment Co. sharing part of the building from 1952 to 1958. The Crafty 

Lady sold plaster crafts in the late 1970s where women could paint and finish gifts and décor.  

Left to Right: Chinese Laundry, 79 North; Jamison Confectionery, 81 North; 

Blamires Meat Market, 83 North.   

Photo above ca. 1930 (Heritage Museum) 
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Blamires Meat Market/Health Studio: Verna Walton Massage / 5ÒÓÕÌÁȭÓ (ÁÉÒ &ÁÓÈÉÏÎÓȾ "ÁÌÌÅÔ 3ÃÈÏÏÌ/ B & W Variety  ɀ 83-85 No. Main   

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

άaŜŀǘ aŀǊƪŜǘ ƪƴƻǿƴ ŀǎ .ƭŀƳƛǊŜǎ aŜŀǘ aŀǊƪŜǘ ǿƛǘƘ ²ŀȅƴŜ /ƘƛǇƳŀƴ 

standing in front. Mr. Chipman was the son of James Chipman, 

manager, and Robert Blamires owned the Market. 

Located at 83 North Main Street, the meat market used a delivery wagon which drove 

around to customers so they could choose the piece of meat they desired. The meat 

was then cut on the spot. According to a 1922 article, ά¢ƘŜ Ŏƛǘȅ ƳŜŀǘ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ Ƙŀǎ 

ΨŎƘŀƴƎŜŘ ƘŀƴŘǎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƛƳŜ ǘƻ ǘƛƳŜΣ ŦƻǊ ǎƻƳŜ ȅŜŀǊǎ Ǉŀǎǘ ƻǿƴŜŘ ŀƴŘ ƻǇŜǊŀǘŜŘ ōȅ bƛŎƪ 

Bonnemort,Ω ǳƴŘŜǊ ǿƘƻǎŜ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ƛǘ Ƙŀǎ ƎǊƻǿƴ ŀƴŘ ŜȄǇŀƴŘŜŘ ǳƴǘƛƭ ƛǘ ƛǎ άǿƘŜǊŜ 

the most discriminatiƴƎ ōǳȅŜǊǎ Ŏŀƴ ƘŀǾŜ ǘƘŜƛǊ ǿŀƴǘǎ ǎǳǇǇƭƛŜŘΦέ όtǊƻǎǇŜǊƻǳǎύ It was 

variously known as The Kaysville Market, Blamires Meat Market or Feller Meats.  

B & W, YŀȅǎǾƛƭƭŜΩǎ ŦƛǊǎǘ ǾŀǊƛŜǘȅ store, was on the west side of Main Street by May 1947. 

Mountain View Homes, Vernŀ ²ŀƭǘƻƴΩǎ IŜŀƭǘƘ ŀƴŘ aŀǎǎŀƎŜ {ǘǳŘƛƻΣ ¢ƘŜ .ƭǳŜ 5ƻƻǊ όŀǊǘ 

and pottery) quickly followed until, in 1967, it became the first Clytie Adams Dance 

Studio.  

¦ǊǎǳƭŀΩǎ IŀƛǊ CŀǎƘƛƻƴǎ established occupancy at 85 North Main from 1958-2005, over 50 

years. The original hair dryers were maintained and in use until closure.  

 

 

This photograph shows a Cleaning Village sign. During the 1960s and 70s, Earl 

Goasland Ǌŀƴ 9ŀǊƭΩǎ /ƭŜŀƴŜǊǎ ŀǘ ǘƘƛǎ ǎƛǘŜΦ The two businesses may have been the 

same.  


